
 
General Business                                        Lower Saucon Township                                              October 1, 2008 
& Developer                                                      Council Minutes                                                              7:00 P.M. 
 
 
I. OPENING 

 
CALL TO ORDER:  The General Business & Developer meeting of Lower Saucon Township Council 
was called to order on Wednesday, October 1, 2008 at 7:04 P.M., at 3700 Old Philadelphia Pike, 
Bethlehem, PA, with Mr. Glenn Kern, Council President, presiding.    

   
 ROLL CALL:  Present – Glenn Kern, President; Tom Maxfield, Vice President;  Ron Horiszny, Priscilla 

deLeon, Sandra Yerger, Council members; Jack Cahalan, Township Manager; Leslie Huhn, Assistant 
Township Manager; Dan Miller, Township Engineer; Township Solicitor, David Shafkowitz; Township 
Planner, Judy Stern Goldstein, Boucher & James.   

   
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF APPLICABLE) 

 
 

Mr. Kern said Council had an Executive Session after the last meeting on September 17, 2008, but 
did not have any Executive Sessions in between.  They will have an Executive Session this evening 

after the meeting to discuss possible real estate acquisition and personnel issues. 
 

 
II. PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 Mr. Kern said for citizen agenda items – Council operates under Robert’s Rules.  What that means is during 

agenda items, Council will talk amongst themselves and amongst staff and the interested parties.  At the 
conclusion of that, we open it up to the public for public comment.  There is an opportunity for non-agenda 
items at the end of the meeting to discuss whatever your business might be.  We do have a microphone and 
there are microphones up at the table. There is a sign-in sheet in the back of the room.  Please print your 
name and address and email address.  It is very helpful in transcribing the minutes.  For those who want to 
receive emailed agendas, please give your email address to Diane, Leslie, or Jack or call the Township 
office.  Please state your name and address.  If you can’t hear, please let us know.  Mr. Kern asked if 
anything was taken off the agenda this evening?  Mr. Cahalan said no. 

   
III. PRESENTATIONS/HEARINGS 

  
None 
 

IV. DEVELOPER ITEMS 
 

A. TARANTINO MINOR SUBDIVISION – 3770 OLD PHILADELPHIA PIKE – 
PRELIMINARY/FINAL SUBDIVISION APPROVAL 

 
Mr. Kern said the applicant is proposing to subdivide a 1.94 acre lot to construct a single-family 
dwelling to be served by public sewer and on lot water. 
 
Present – David Martin from Keystone Consulting Engineers, and Barry and Elaine Tarantino.   

 
 
 
 



General Business Meeting 
October 1, 2008 
 

Page 2 of 12 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION FOR TARANTINO MINOR SUBDIVISION 
3770 OLD PHILADELPHIA PIKE, TAX MAP PARCEL Q6NW3-5-9  

PRELIMINARY/FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAN APPROVAL  
 

The Lower Saucon Township Staff recommends that the Township Council approve the 
“Preliminary/Final Minor Subdivision Plan on Lands Now or Formerly of Elaine Tarantino,” as 
prepared by Keystone Consulting Engineers, Inc., dated March 18, 2008, last revised August 14, 
2008 consisting of Sheet 1 of 1. 
 
Subject, however, to the following conditions: 
 
1. The Applicant shall address the review comments contained in the letter dated September 

25, 2008, from Hanover Engineering Associates, Inc., to the satisfaction of the Township 
Council.  

 
2. In the event the lot pins, survey monuments, sanitary sewer lateral or inlet have not been set 

nor is the required Financial Security Agreement executed within 90 days of this approval, 
this approval shall expire and be deemed revoked unless a written extension is granted by the 
Governing Body. 

 
3. The Applicant shall provide two (2) Mylars and seven (7) prints of the Record Plans with 

original signatures, notarizations, and seals.  Four (4) complete sets of Plans shall also be 
provided with original signatures, notarizations and seals. The Applicant shall also provide 
two (2) CDs of all Plans in an AutoCAD format (jpeg-ROM).   

 
4. The Applicant shall pay any outstanding escrow balance due to the Township in the review 

of the Plans and the preparation of legal documents.  
 
5. The Applicant shall satisfy all these conditions within one (1) year of the date of the 

conditional approval unless an extension is granted by the Township Council. 
 
6. All waivers granted shall be noted on the Plans with the applicable section, requirements, 

date of approval, and any conditions of approval.   
 
It is also recommended that Township Council approve waivers from the following requirements of 
the following Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance (SALDO) Sections: 
 
1. Sections 145-33.C(1) and (2) and 145-34.B so as to not require, per these sections, any 

further existing feature information, either on site or surrounding the site.  
  
2. Section 145-43.B(2), so as to not require an additional 20-foot front yard setback, 10-foot 

wide planting screen, prohibition of vehicular access, buffer berm (other than the existing 
roadside slope) and trees (other than those existing) along the collector Seidersville Road.. 

 
3. Sections 145-36, 145-41.B(4), and 145-45.B(9) so as to not require further improvements, 

including a roadside swale conforming to Township construction standards, along Old 
Philadelphia Pike and Seidersville Road other than is shown on the Plans.   

 
4. Section 145-46.B so as to allow the northern and southern easements on Lot 1 to be 10 feet 

wide rather than the required 20 feet wide. 
 
Mr. Martin said the applicant is proposing to subdivide the existing lot of record which is 
approximately 2.42 acres into two proposed lots.  The existing improvements will be retained on 



General Business Meeting 
October 1, 2008 
 

Page 3 of 12 

Lot No. 1, which is an existing family lot dwelling, also contains a driveway.  The dwelling is also 
served by public water and sewer.  On Lot. No. 2, conceptual improvements have been 
shown…driveway, dwelling, grading and improvements for planning purposes.  
 
Mr. Kern asked if there were any issues of note with the Hanover Engineering letter?  Mr. Martin 
said yes, he would like to discuss No. 9.  The applicant was wondering if the Council would be 
willing to entertain deferring the installation of the sanitary sewer lateral and the sanitary tapping 
fee until the time the building application permit is applied for Lot No. 2.     Mrs. deLeon said what 
is the time table right now, is it an Authority thing as far as the request to delay that?  Attorney 
Shafkowitz said he doesn’t see a problem with that.   
 
Mr. Miller said the issue is security and the obtainment of the HOP for the road crossing.  Is it just 
the security or are you going to get the HOP?  Mr. Martin said they are going to get the HOP 
approved for the lateral crossing.  Mr. Miller said the idea behind the comment is when they 
propose a new lot; it is supposed to be buildable.  That’s why you do sewage testing or why you 
secure getting a lateral on to the site.  It is certainly within your rights to defer that.  Mr. Kern said 
is there a potential that the lot is not buildable?  Mr. Miller said it’s buildable if it has sewage 
capacity, and since they didn’t do testing, that’s why the lateral would be needed, or they could 
find out testing is okay, but LSA wants it to be connected, so they are going to have to connect 
anyway.  Attorney Shafkowitz said it’s just a matter of extending the sewer lateral to the house 
when it gets built.  Mrs. deLeon said doesn’t the LSA have its own rules and regulations that 
require a timetable when all these things are supposed to happen?  Attorney Shafkowitz said for 
that part, he doesn’t know the Authority’s rules and regulations.  His understanding of the way the 
process should work, if they are coming to the Township to get a building permit to build their 
house, they are going to have to have that in hand to get the building permit.  If the Board was 
going to act favorably on the application tonight, we can make it with condition of approval that 
they don’t have to post security for it, but they will not be issued a building permit until they have 
the appropriate permit from the Authority.  Mr. Miller said so it’s completely clear, we are not 
talking about the sanitary extended entirely to the house.  This is getting it across the road.  Mr. 
Maxfield said in your letter you asked for security for that construction?  Mr. Miller said correct.  
Mr. Maxfield said he doesn’t see why you wouldn’t require that, personally, and then there’s the 
added expense of connecting to that to get to the house during construction.  We should ask for 
security.  To get it across the street is not the building site.  Mrs. deLeon said there are reasons why 
we ask for it up front.  Mr. Maxfield said a situation like this, yes, it’s across the street.  Mr. Martin 
said he does have a letter from LSA from Gar Davidson, and it says at the bottom, “once you have 
your approvals, and are ready to take out a building permit, tapping and connections fees should be 
paid” and the letter is dated May 7, 2008.  Mrs. deLeon said are we talking about tapping and 
connection fees or are we talking about the lateral?  Mr. Martin said the lateral and the tapping fees 
are two different things.  Mrs. Yerger said you are asking for a waiver from what?  Mr. Martin said 
from deferral from both until the time that a building permit is applied for Lot. No. 2.  Attorney 
Shafkowitz said another thing you could do is withholding of the subdivision plan until he’s ready 
to build and that means he has to put the improvement in, record the plan, and he won’t have to 
post security at that time.   One of the options is once the improvement is in, sign off on it, and at 
least you can get the plan recorded.  That option is available instead of granting a waiver.   
 
Mr. Kern said what’s the preferred option for Council?  Mr. Maxfield said he thinks there has to be 
a guarantee that we get it across the road.  The lot could be sold without that having occurred.  Mr. 
Kern said what would the wording be?  Attorney Shafkowitz said if you leave it the way it is, that’s 
fine.  The MPC allows the applicant to make that determination on their own.  It’s not a matter of it 
having to be in your resolution which says it’s a public improvement and we want security.  
However, the MPC says if you are installing that improvement first, then the township is entitled to 
withhold recording of the plan until the improvement is in, then once it’s certified that the 



General Business Meeting 
October 1, 2008 
 

Page 4 of 12 

improvement is in, then we can record the plan, then they get their building permit.  This is a single 
family home, so just let the pieces fall into place. 
 
Mr. Martin said since the lateral and the tapping fee are two different things, if the applicant installs 
a lateral, can we get the tapping fee deferred until the time of the building permit?  Mrs. deLeon 
said she doesn’t think that is up to us, it’s up to the Authority.  Attorney Shafkowitz said we 
wouldn’t issue a building permit until we know that the EDU is secured.    Mrs. deLeon said do we 
have time in this, she doesn’t want to delay this process?  Mr. Maxfield said he thinks we are 
talking about two different sections.  We are talking about our responsibility and the Authority’s 
responsibility.  We just handled this part of it and take care of it and the Authority can take care of 
their part.  Mr. Miller said it would be good to make a comment on whether you are looking to 
have the entire thing deferred. The cost should be considered now or be postponed.  It would be 
kind of awkward to require the construction of the lateral without the payment of the tapping fee.   
 
Mr. Miller said it’s really the township’s responsibility for the improvements and tapping fee and 
the connection fee.  That can be handled administratively with LSA.  We wrote the security for the 
lateral construction in this letter because that is the township’s issue to make sure that happens.  
The tapping fee usually gets paid when the lateral gets constructed, but it’s not your responsibility 
to be enforcing that.  It is not a township obligation, it’s LSA’s obligation.  Mr. Maxfield said we 
have to just get it across the road to where it can be tapped in to.  Mr. Miller said when they want to 
connect to it, LSA will say now you will have to pay the tapping fee, but that’s something to 
address with LSA.  Ms. Stern Goldstein said it’s the same with any other development.  The 
tapping fees are with the Authority, not with the Township.  Mr. Maxfield said all we basically 
have to do is leave our regulation in place and we’ll have what we are supposed to have.  Mrs. 
deLeon said we don’t have to waive anything.  Mr. Kern said and you’ll talk with LSA.  Mr. Martin 
said yes.  Mr. Miller said the only comment he’d have is if we are not looking to having this not 
installed immediate and security not being posted immediately, the standard condition that Linc 
wants in the motion should probably be modified to not reference the sanitary sewer lateral.  If you 
look at the staff recommendation motion, there’s a standard condition in there that says if security 
or improvements are not in place within 90 days, the township reserves the right to remove their 
approval.  That, with regard, to the sanitary sewer should be revised if we’re not looking for this to 
be resolved in a quick manner.  Ms. Stern Goldstein said or it just gets extended, which is common 
when someone takes longer than 90 days.   Mr. Kern said he wouldn’t mind them coming back for 
an extension.  Mrs. deLeon said you have to remember that the ball is in your court to come back.   
 
Ms. Stern Goldstein said in this case, the Boucher and James letter was the easy letter.  Our letter is 
noting a few nonconformities on the site.  It’s having the references to not forget the Park and 
Recreation fee in lieu of, which is covered in the staff recommendation.  They need to present 
documentation for water and sewer, which they are in the process of doing.  For sewer, they have 
provided documentation, for water, it was just having the I’s doted and the T’s crossed, with the 
exception of the items that appear in the resolution.   Any issues in our letter are already in the 
conditions.   
 
Mr. Martin said with that objection, the applicant has no objections to installing the sanitary sewer 
lateral which is actually installed by LSA anyway.  The sanitary sewer lateral, the inlet and the 
monumentation will be set prior to recording, so no financial escrow has to be applied or provided.  
That will all be done.   Mrs. deLeon said if that’s not done, you will have to come back.   Mr. 
Martin said for some reason if LSA can’t do it within 90 days, we’ll have to ask for an extension.   
 
Mr. Martin said the sanitary sewer, he just wants to make sure you will vote on the allocation 
tonight.  That’s the proper procedure?  Mrs. deLeon said no, there are forms that the Authority 
presents to us with allocation requests.  That’s not in the motion.  Mrs. Stern Goldstein has not seen 
the request.  Mr. Martin said do we have to come back for that?  Mrs. Stern Goldstein said the 



General Business Meeting 
October 1, 2008 
 

Page 5 of 12 

paperwork has to come back, you don’t have to need to be here.  Mrs. deLeon said in the past, 
we’ve always kept fill ins, and we’re only talking one new lot, so it’s just a procedural thing that is 
missing.  Mrs. deLeon asked Mr. Horiszny if that was discussed at the last LSA meeting?  Mr. 
Horiszny said it wasn’t discussed.  Mr. Martin said he sent a request letter to Gar Davidson awhile 
ago and the letter he sent back talks about collection and conveyance and that they do have the 
allocation for the one EDU.  We have been in correspondence.  The one thing that hasn’t been done 
yet, and he’s talked to Mr. Cahalan several months ago, is the City of Bethlehem has a new process 
when you typically request an allocation from the Authority.  Before, he would send the same letter 
to the City of Bethlehem getting the plain capacity overload letter, but now they don’t do that.  
They want that letter to come straight from the Authority or the Township and they spoke about 
providing that letter once the EDU has been allocated. That’ll take a week or so to get the letter 
from the City.  Once he has that, he can send the planning module exemption post card to DEP.  
Mrs. deLeon said the City has nothing to do with the EDU.  It’s the Authority.  Mr. Martin said the 
city signs off on the treatment.  Mrs. deLeon said is there a way we can do a consensus vote of this 
one EDU?  Mr. Maxfield asked Mr. Miller to go and look on the map and see if there is one EDU 
allocated.  Mrs. deLeon said knowing that at the next meeting, we’ll officially do it, you will be 
more comfortable.   Mr. Maxfield said as long as the okay by the City of Bethlehem is contained in 
Dan’s No. 9 condition.   Attorney Shafkowitz said LSA says in their letter that they are going to 
install the lateral, is that common place?  Wouldn’t the security be placed with the Authority?  Dan 
Miller said no, normally what they do is they pay the Authority and the Authority installs it.  There 
is no security involved at all.  Attorney Shafkowitz said the issue of security relates to the fact that 
the road is going to be opened.  Mrs. Stern Goldstein said the issue of security really is in case they 
decide not to contract directly with the Authority prior to selling the lot and the Township has the 
amount of that money reserved to pay the Authority to do the work if they need to.  It all goes to 
the Authority anyway.  It’s just a matter of making sure it’s there.   
 
Attorney Shafkowitz said he doesn’t know if it’s easier to say it’s a condition of approval, even 
though the resolution is laid out, that be a condition of approvals that the applicant pay the 
Authority to install those improvements and it will carry with the approval whether they build this 
lot or somebody else does.  Mrs. deLeon said what does it say about the EDU’s?  Mr. Cahalan said 
it a request of one (1) EDU waste water loading.  The sewer main has sufficient capacity to handle 
the additional requested one (1) EDU of waste water loading and will not result in any conveyance 
overload condition for at least the next five years.  Mrs. Stern Goldstein said that’s the traditional 
planning module comment.  Mrs. deLeon said we need to make two motions tonight.   We need to 
get the paperwork from the Authority first.  Mr. Miller said it says there are 40 unallocated EDU’s 
for fill in.  It doesn’t specify where those go.  It would apply to the existing line and the new lot.  
Mrs. deLeon said there are only 40 units left?  Mr. Miller said 40 that are not allocated for specific 
properties.  There are EDU’s that are allocated to groups of land.  Mrs. deLeon said what is the best 
way to handle this so they can leave here knowing we are comfortable with this one EDU and then 
we can vote on the staff recommendation or can it be put into the staff recommendation?  Attorney 
Shafkowitz said the Board conditionally approves the granting of the EDU upon receipt of the 
appropriate document from the LSA and as long as the right documentation comes in, he doesn’t 
have to come back.  Mrs. Stern Goldstein said could Council make a motion saying they endorse 
the approving of that and advise the Township Manager to sign that documentation?  Mrs. deLeon 
said she would rather have it come back to Council.    
 
Attorney Shafkowitz said the applicant is conditionally granted approval for the one EDU 
necessary for the project, conditioned upon presentation of the appropriate materials to Council 
from the Lower Saucon Authority proving that there is sufficient capacity in the system. 

 
 
 
 



General Business Meeting 
October 1, 2008 
 

Page 6 of 12 

MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved for approval as stated above by the Solicitor. 
SECOND BY:  Mrs. Yerger 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 
ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 
 Mr. Martin said in regards to comment No. 9, it also mentions Lower Saucon Authority must 

approve the details for the proposed connection; no details have been provided.  They are installing 
the lateral and he wouldn’t know what details they have to see at that time except the building 
connection to the lateral which would be on the grading plan.  Mr. Miller said there’s the 
connection from the lateral that would be constructed by LSA to the house.  There’s also that we 
left you the option in the letter of you securing it.  If you are going to secure it, you are either going 
to have to say LSA is building this, or specify what the LSA’s improvements are.  You can just say 
LSA is building this and have the security, that’s acceptable as well.   

 
 Mr. Martin said one thing he noticed in comment 10 was, what’s the language of Appendix B-8?  

Mr. Miller said that’s the language that the township uses.  It’s a slight modification of the MPC 
that says that approval of this plan is conditional upon obtaining of the PennDOT permit for site 
access and that you can’t come back to the township and be upset with them because you didn’t get 
access. Mr. Kern said what is the desire at this time?   

 
MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved for approval the Tarantino Minor Subdivision – 3770 Old Philadelphia 

Pike, staff recommendation dated October 1, 2008. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 
ROLL CALL: 5-0 

 
Mrs. deLeon said she was looking at the EAC letters from May 9 and July 2.  What attracted her 
attention was that the motion includes non-voting members.  Mrs. Stern Goldstein said that’s her 
fault, she wasn’t aware who was a voting member and not a voting member and she wrote the 
recommendation.  Mrs. deLeon said the members are on the letterhead.  Mrs. Stern Goldstein said 
she will make sure she finds out who are voting and non voting members.  Mr. Maxfield said 
associate members can make motions, they just can’t vote.  Attorney Shafkowitz said on the voting 
provision, you are absolutely right.  On the motion side, he’d have to check.   Mrs. deLeon said we 
should have it in writing so we can avoid this in future meetings.  Mrs. Stern Goldstein said she 
will make sure Stacy Ogur knows about this. Mr. Maxfield said we are just talking about a glitch in 
the minutes.  The associate members don’t vote. 

 
V. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

A. APPROVAL OF CONTRACTOR ESTIMATE FOR INTERIOR/EXTERIOR PAINTING 
AND REPAIR OF WINDOWS AT  HELLER  HOMESTEAD 

 
Mr. Kern said the Township solicited estimates from several contractors for painting and repairs to 
the exterior and interior of the windows at the Heller Homestead Main House.  The work will 
involve:  Interior – replacement of several cracker window panes; scraping and sanding; putty 
holes, caulking and re-glazing, where necessary, replacement of four windows in the attic.  Exterior 
– power washing to remove mildew, dirt, chalking; scraping and sanding; putty holes, caulking and 
re-glazing, where necessary; applying two coats of latex acrylic enamel semi-gloss finish to match 
existing color.  Sobrinski Painting, Inc. of Allentown has submitted the lowest estimate for the 
entire scope of this work at a price of $9,900.  The Manager and Solicitor have reviewed the 
estimates that were received and recommend that Sobrinski Painting be approved to do this work.  
The scope of work has received approval of the Pennsylvania Historic and Museum Commission 
(PHMC).   



General Business Meeting 
October 1, 2008 
 

Page 7 of 12 

Mr. Cahalan said they discussed this at a previous Council meeting.  There weren’t any concerns 
about the painting.  There was a question from Council about the primer coat going on with the two 
overcoats and that was answered affirmatively by Sobrinksi.  There was another question about the 
sill repair and the use of the conditioning agent on that and that was also confirmed with Sobrinski 
that they would be using an agent to condition the sills, a product called Abitrone which was 
recommended by Christine Ussler.  Those two issues were confirmed and he had a discussion with 
Priscilla and she had a conversation with Karen Arnold at PHMC about the windows in the attic 
and there were some questions about what type of window would be installed.  In the quote, we are 
installing four window to replace the four that are there.  Two are originals which were put in, in 
the 30’s or 40’s and two were put in by the township at some point.  The question was what type of 
windows were going in there.  The conversation with Karen Arnold was that the requirements for 
the PHMC would be that they would have to have four panes divided lights with the muntons and 
the window would have to be made out of wood.  He contacted Sobrinski and did confirm the 
windows would have four panes and be made out of wood.  That’s all included in the estimate of 
$9,900.  They are going to replace all four windows.  Sobrinski is the lowest bid. 

 
Mrs. deLeon said she came across the August 27 letter from the State regarding the request from 
the Township and it would be helpful to give the contractor a copy of this letter and print out the 
Brief No. 9 as it would be helpful to him as he does a lot of historic work.  Mr. Cahalan said he will 
do that. 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Kern moved for approval of contractor estimate for interior/exterior painting and repair of 

windows at the Heller Homestead…the award going to Sobrinski Painting for a price of 
$9,900.00. 

SECOND BY:  Mr. Maxfield 
Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

Mrs. deLeon said our “Meet the Artist” is tomorrow night from 7 PM to 9 PM. Mr. Cahalan said he 
will get a date when the power washing is done.  Mrs. deLeon said the letter to PHMC referred to 
the hand rail in the attic, is it already in?  Mr. Cahalan said that’s been repaired.  Mrs. deLeon said 
the caulk in the sunroom ceiling?  Mr. Cahalan said that is the issue with the debris falling down 
from the ceiling on the side of the wall where the molding was put up with the new ceiling.  They 
will take the molding down and re-caulk it.   

 
B. APPROVAL OF CONTRACTOR ESTIMATE FOR REPAIR OF STONEWORK AT 

HELLER HOMESTEAD 
 

Mr. Kern said the township solicited estimates from several masonry contractors for masonry 
repairs to the maintenance garage and the front steps and porch at the Heller Homestead Main 
House.  The work will involve:  repairing footing and replacing cinder blocks on the maintenance 
garage, replacing 4 bluestone treads and re-pointing the area on the front steps, and repairing 
stonework and re-pointing the area on the front porch.  Terry Fenoff Stone Homes of Hellertown 
has submitted the lowest estimate for his work at a price of $2,875.00.  The Manager and Solicitor 
have reviewed the estimates that were received and recommend that Terry Fenoff Stone Homes be 
approved to do this work.  These repairs will need the approval of the Pennsylvania Historic and 
Museum Commission (PHMC). 
 
Mr. Cahalan said this involves three separate repairs, the front steps that come off the parking lot, 
the treads on there are cracked and they are bluestone.  Those need to be replaced. There’s another 
side of the front porch, there are some stones that have fallen off there and they need to be replaced 
and the area needs to be re-pointed and the third one is if you pull in, there’s a maintenance garage 



General Business Meeting 
October 1, 2008 
 

Page 8 of 12 

and the cinder blocks on those have slid down and broken away from the wall.  That’s what the 
estimate is on and Fenoff is the lowest at $2,875.00.   
 
Mrs. Yerger asked if there was a break out of what each one of them would cost?  Mr. Cahalan said 
Fenoff gave us a one price for all three.  The other contractor was much higher and broke it down 
into the three jobs.  Mrs. Yerger said she’s a little reluctant to repair the maintenance garage. 
They’ve had recommendations from their Engineers, in the past, that it actually should be taken 
down.  She’s a little reluctant to approve this. It’s in a flood plain and a bad example for the rest of 
the township to have a structure in a flood plain.  That’s basically what our engineers have said in 
the past and maybe we should not put the money into it and put that money into removing it.  Mr. 
Kern said it is not an attractive structure.  Mrs. Yerger said it does not add to the historic value of 
the house, it detracts from it.  It’s not anything close to anything of the period.  Mr. Kern said he 
took a look inside and it seems to be storing junk right now.  Mrs. deLeon said there are some barn 
remnants in there and some things from SauconFest.  It’s an accumulation.  Mr. Cahalan said there 
is a pool table in there and a wooden lathe that is supposedly Marcus Brown’s, and then some old 
office furniture.  Mrs. Yerger said it’s not attractive and not worth putting money into it as it’s a 
detriment in the flood plain.  Mr. Maxfield said it’s being used for storage and it could be under 
water sometime soon.  There are things stored in there, and not township items, how would we go 
about disposing of it?  Mr. Cahalan said it would take some time.  He’d have to go and see who it 
belongs to and communicate with the various organizations.   Mr. Horiszny said if we are going to 
take it down, we could just put up an announcement for the folks to come and get their junk.  Mr. 
Cahalan said we’d have to do that and make sure there is nothing historical in there.   Mr. Maxfield 
said there are some old copper parts in there.  Mr. Kern said we can check that out.  Mrs. deLeon 
said is there a rush in taking it down.  It is township owned and accepted by the township for open 
space and preservation.  Mrs. Yerger said she doesn’t think they meant the building.  Mr. Maxfield 
said he doesn’t want it sitting around long enough that it will become unsafe.  Mrs. Yerger said can 
we get some letters out to the SV Conservancy asking for their help and let them know they might 
have to restore some of these things.  Mr. Cahalan said he can come back with a recreation for the 
demolition of the maintenance garage at another meeting and he can let you know how it can be 
done and what the cost will be.   Mrs. Yerger said the Conservancy needs to be informed and 
maybe they can be assistance to who it belongs to.  Mrs. deLeon said the township will have to find 
a place to put the barn stuff.  Mr. Kern said that wouldn’t be a problem.  Mr. Cahalan said he would 
come back with a recommendation or a plan for the demolition.  He will have to retable the rest of 
the estimate and have them re-bid.  Mr. Maxfield said because it has a potential to be a safety 
problem, can we set a timeline.  If we are going to contact people, we should do it ASAP.  Mrs. 
deLeon said she’d like to see the letters from the Engineers again.  Mr. Cahalan said it was when 
there was an issue about the Maintenance Garage being potentially used for the Gift Shop and HEA 
looked into it and they had done a flood plain study and said the building is in the flood plain and 
the recommendation was long term, to consider demolition.  Mrs. deLeon said why don’t we put 
this on the agenda in two weeks and talk about it then.  Right now we are talking about the 
estimate.  We need to look into the front steps and porch.  Mr. Cahalan said he is going to have to 
table it and come back with a recommended plan for the garage.  Mrs. Yerger said we can then 
plug in a date after we think about it and Mr. Cahalan brings back a recommendation.  Mr. 
Maxfield said he would not vote for repair of the building.  It should come down.  Mr. Horiszny 
said on the itemized bid, was there a guesstimate of what was what?  Mr. Cahalan said not on the 
Fenoff estimate.  On the other bid, there was a lot more work on the garage.  They wanted to go in 
and dig up the footing, put in a new footing, and that was the most expensive part.  This contractor 
said he’ll just put the blocks back. 
 
 
 
 
 



General Business Meeting 
October 1, 2008 
 

Page 9 of 12 

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved to table this estimate. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Kern 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  Mrs. deLeon said the front steps and the porch.  
We need to find out from the contractor if he’s familiar with PHMC guidelines.  Does the 
estimate refer to lime mortar or concrete mortar?  Mr. Cahalan said they didn’t get involved 
with that.  Mrs. deLeon said that could be a significant difference in the cost.  When she spoke 
with Karen Arnold from PHMC, she also asked about the lime mortar mix.  PHMC does not 
like concrete because of the absorption problems, and matching the color and she used a term 
joint profile of the mortar.  When you use the mortar around the stones, you have to match it 
with what’s already there.   Mr. Maxfield said it’s like a period style.   Mr. Kern said that’s 
something that can be in after this is tabled and you can put in specifications into the bid for 
exactly that, what the mortar mix is, what the finish is.  Mr. Cahalan said they did not put that 
in the RFP that was sent out.  Mrs. deLeon said she never saw the RFP.  In the future, we need 
to remember that anything, even with the Lutz-Franklin Schoolhouse, anytime you are using 
mortar, it has to be the lime mixture, not the cement mixture because of the historic properties. 
Attorney Shafkowitz said if the contract is under $4,000, it doesn’t have to go to bid, so 
realistically, if you wanted to accept the proposal and modify it, you could.  Mrs. deLeon said 
she wants to make sure this contractor is familiar with the proper repairs.  Mr. Cahalan said 
he’s going to have to go back to him and go over all this additional information and if he can 
do that without increasing his price.  We strictly asked them to put the stone back on the porch 
and to repair the steps.  We did not put in any specs from PHMC.  Mrs. deLeon said PHMC is 
going to want to know the above about the lime mixture, etc. before they approve the repairs. 
Mr. Kern said instead of concrete, they use a sand mixture and some concrete.  It’s not a big 
deal, they just have to be aware of the mixture and when you report back to us, make sure they 
can do it per PHMC’s specifications.   Mrs. deLeon said PHMC has a percentage, they have it 
all figured out.  Mr. Kern said it’s not going to impact the cost and if it does, they will find 
someone else.  Mr. Cahalan said he will bring this back at the next Council meeting.   

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 
VI. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 17, 2008 COUNCIL MINUTES 
 

Mr. Kern said the minutes of September 17, 2008 Council meeting have been prepared and are 
ready for Council’s review and approval. 
 
Mr. Horiszny said on page 4 of 13, line 16, after request, add “for”.  On page 9 of 13, line 1, after 
moved for approval of the, add “use of”.  Page 11 of 13, line 48 & 49, “Rick Tralies is a featured 
speaker at this seminar” should go on page 10 of 13, line 39, under Mrs. Yerger’s report on the 
Growing Greener Conservation Design. 
 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval of the September 17, 2008 minutes, with corrections. 
SECOND BY:  Mrs. deLeon 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 
ROLL CALL: 4-1 (Mr. Horiszny – No) 
 

B. APPROVAL OF AUGUST 2008 FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 

Mr. Kern said the August 2008 Financial Reports have been prepared and are ready for Council’s 
review and approval. 
 
 
 



General Business Meeting 
October 1, 2008 
 

Page 10 of 12 

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for approval of the August 2008 financial report. 
SECOND BY:  Mrs. Yerger 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 
ROLL CALL: 5-0 

 
VII. PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 

None 
 

VIII. COUNCIL AND STAFF REPORTS 
 

A. TOWNSHIP MANAGER 
Ø Mr. Cahalan said Diane Palik is our new Administrative Assistant who will start working 

with us on October 7, 2008.  We are going to get rolling with Diane.   You’ve all seen her 
work and she’ll still be doing the minutes.  We’re glad to have her. 

Ø Mr. Cahalan said the Eagle Scout project for the nature trail at Town Hall Park was done 
by a young Eagle Scout under the direction of Roy Young and they did interpretive signs 
and that was completed and he’s looking to set up a short dedication ceremony in October.  
Mrs. Yerger said he did a good job.  Mr. Cahalan said it will be on a Saturday morning. 

Ø Mr. Cahalan said the budget hearing is scheduled for Wednesday, October 22, 2008 at 6:00 
PM. 

Ø Mr. Cahalan said the date for the electronic recycling is October 18, 2008 from 9:00 AM to 
noon.  Ads were placed for this and its on the website. 

Ø Mr. Cahalan said Donna Bristol, was at the last Parks and Recreation meeting and she said 
she would be interested in becoming a member.  He asked her to send in a letter of interest 
and she emailed a letter in and it said she has her PHD from Ohio State University and 
returned to PA in 1981.  She was a Professor at local colleges and her husband was a City 
Manager in Hellertown in the late 60, early 70’s, and she lives at 2022 Springtown Hill 
Road. She’s attended P&R’s meeting and went to the meeting this month and the Board 
has come a long way.  The meeting was very organized and impressive.  There has been a 
lot done in the Township and the joint ventures with Hellertown and with Parks and 
Recreation. She’s not a soccer Mom, but she can see the current project Rails to Trails 
could really benefit people who bike, hike, walk, walk animals, etc. and would like to help 
with that project and other projects and would like to become an active member of the 
Parks and Recreation. She has the time and energy to put into it. He said currently there are 
five active members and they can have seven members.  If appointed tonight, she would 
serve until the end of the year, December 31, 2008, and then would be subject for 
reappointment for 2009.  It would be a vote from Council to approve the recommendation. 

 
MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved for approval of Donna Bristol to the Parks and Rec. board to fill the 

expired term until December 31, 2008. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?   He said have they begun removing the tracks 
for the Rails to Trails?  Mr. Cahalan said yes, they went down to check on it in Coopersburg 
and they have moved from Coopersburg North past Living Memorial and are up to Passer 
Road.  They went to check any disturbance on the end and there was none.  The Solicitor is in 
the process of reviewing the lease agreement.  He looked at the first draft and sent back some 
comments to SEPTA.  They didn’t see too many problems with it at this time, so hopefully, 
they can get it back to Council at some time.   Mrs. deLeon said the next Parks and Rec. 
meeting is Monday, will Donna Bristol be notified?  Mr. Cahalan said he will let her know 
tomorrow.   

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 



General Business Meeting 
October 1, 2008 
 

Page 11 of 12 

B. COUNCIL/JR. COUNCIL 
 

Mr. Maxfield 
Ø None 

 
Mrs. Yerger 
Ø She said the application for the Whitetail Bowman’s Club for co-funding for the 

conservation easement on the 26-1/2 acres was submitted to Northampton County’s open 
space program yesterday and we are requesting $93,000.00.  They only fund 50%, and it is 
in their high priority area.  It has significant natural resources, so we are hoping it will be 
approved and they will fund it. 

Mr. Horiszny 
Ø He attended the last LSA meeting and they are still working on an appeal to the PUC to not 

have to put in meter pits which would cost us over $200,000.00.  That should be done 
fairly soon. 

Ø There’s a hearing for the National Register status for the Lutz Franklin Schoolhouse at 
PHMC in Harrisburg on October 7 and Jack Cahalan has arranged for a van to take 
interested parties to that event. 

 
Mr. Kern 
Ø None 

 
Mrs. deLeon 
Ø She said on Saturday, October 25, 2008 from 10:00 AM to 4:00 PM, the Lower Saucon 

Township Historical Society, Hellertown Historical Society and the Saucon Valley 
Conservancy will hold the first annual History Day. The Conservancy had planned to do a 
Civil War day, and she talked to Sue Horiszny, President of the Historical Society, and 
they are going to be doing things at their site and then she called and talked to Frank 
Fabian from the Hellertown Historical Society and he will be available on their site to give 
tours and to talk about history.  She’s very excited that this is happening. Please come out 
and visit our historic sites. 

Ø She asked Jack Cahalan about the Jr. Council positions.  Mr. Cahalan said they were in 
touch with Principal Todd Gombos before the teacher’s strike and made the request they 
make every September to recruit Jr. Council members.  Mrs. deLeon said that will be an 
agenda item for our COG meeting.  Mr. Cahalan said he will mention it. 

Ø She handed out brochures of the Barn Tour.  The next one is scheduled from September 1, 
2009 of Saucon Valley area barns. 

Ø She said she talked to Leslie Huhn about the Meadow’s Road bridge, did anything ever 
happen with that?  Leslie Huhn said she is still working on that.  Mrs. deLeon said we 
talked about a resolution, can that be on the next agenda?  Leslie said yes. 

 
C. SOLICITOR 

Ø Attorney Shafkowitz said they are proceeding with the transaction to purchase certain lots 
from First Trust Bank for Cloverview Subdivision and he needs an authorized resolution 
from the Board which will authorize or approve the transaction, authorize acceptance of the 
deed, which he has a copy of and has reviewed and find acceptable and appoint an 
authorized Council President to sign the documents necessary.   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval as stated above by the Solicitor. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Horiszny 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 
ROLL CALL: 5-0 

 



General Business Meeting 
October 1, 2008 
 

Page 12 of 12 

D. ENGINEER 
Ø None 

 
E. PLANNING 

Ø Mrs. Stern Goldstein said on October 29, 2008, there will be a seminar on Sustainable 
Parks and your own park, Polk Valley Park will be featured.  Mr. Maxfield and Mrs. 
Yerger will be presenting that and she will be speaking at two sessions.  It should be a 
good seminar and having Polk Valley Park featured, should be a great asset.  Mr. Cahalan 
said speaking about Polk Valley Park, the bid for the pervious concrete did go out and they 
will open them on October 14, 2008. 

 
Mr. Horiszny said did they do the inspection on the Upper Saucon, Salisbury project, the 
big possibility of affecting the flow of the Black River and other things we talked about a 
month ago?  Mr. Miller said he has not, but maybe Brien Kocher has.  Mrs. Stern Goldstein 
said they received a short memo, but Brien Kocher has that one.  Mr. Maxfield said in our 
minutes, we have the names of the people who showed up at the EAC meeting, he’d like to 
make sure they get copies once we review it. 

 
IX. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
Council recessed to go into an Executive Session.  The time was 8:30 PM. 

Council reconvened.  The time was 8:45 PM. 
 

 
 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for adjournment.  The time was 8:46 PM. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Horiszny 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 
ROLL CALL: 5-0  
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
 
___________________________________   __________________________________ 
Mr. Jack Cahalan      Glenn Kern     
Township Manager      President of Council 
 
 
 
 


